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THE

BRITISH DOMINIONS

IN

NORTH AMERICA

TOPOGRATRALLY DESCRIBBD.

CHAPTER 1.

Sketch of the History of the Province.—Geteral I'ace of the Cn&n.tw.—Lakes and
Rivers.

Nova Scoria was the name fonm.erly given to all that immense
tract of country bounded on the north by Lower Canada, on the east
by the ®Bay of Chaleurs and the Gulf of St. L.awrence, including the
Island of St. John, Cape Breton, and all the other islands on the coast,
and on the west by the then New England provinces, and contained
what has since been divided into the separate provinces or colonies
of New Brunswick, Prince Edward’s Island, Cape Bretog, and Nowd
Scotia.

ZLhe province of Nova Scotia is an extensive peninsula, connected
with the continent of North America by a nagrow isthmus of only
eight miles in widtp, between Bay Verte, in the Straits of Northumber-
Ignd, and Cumberland Basin, at the eastern extremity of the Bay of
Fﬁndy. It is situate between 43° 25" and 46° north latitude, and 61%
and 66° 30 longitude west, from Greenwich. It is bounded on the north
by the Bay of Fundy, and by the boundary line extending from Cum-
berland Basin in Chignecto Bay, to the Bay Verte, which separates it
from the cpupty of Westmoreland in New Brunswick; on the east by
the Gut of Causeau and the Gulf of St. I.awrence ; and on the south and
west by the Atlantic ocean. Its extreme length, from Cape Canseau
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on the east'to Cape St.'Mary’s on the west, is about 383 English miles;
and its breadtl. varies from about 50 milés, at whick it may be estinuated
from Chester to Black Rock Pier, to 104, which is its width fream Bristol
Bay to the head of Bay Verte. It contains about 16,000 square miles,
or upwards of nine millions of acres.

Nova Scotia is supposed to have been discovered in 1497 by Cabot,
then in the service of our Henry tae Seventh. 'The French, under the
Marquis de la chhe, were the first who attempted to form .any settle-
ment. He arrived with a number of e~nviets in 1598, and landed them
on Sable Island, where the greater number perished, and the remainder
were taken of* the island and carried back to France. No'farther settle-
ment was attbfnpted until 1604, when Messys. De Monts, Champlain,
and Petrincourt, and a number of volunteer adventurers, founded Port
Royal, now Annapolis. De Monts acted as governor-general under
a commissjga’ f1oin the King of France, and he named the country
(whick included Nova ‘Scotia, New Brunswick, and part of the state
of Maine) Adcadia. This little colony was destroyed in 1614 by the
New Englanders, under Sir Samuel Argal, who transported the inhabit-
ants to Canada, and cancelled and destroyed the patents granted by the
‘French king. These transactions in Nova Scotia are memorable as the
first instance of hostilities between Great Britain and France on the
continent of North America, and which scarcely ever entirely ceased
until, at the cost of infinite blood and treasure, France was stripped of*
all het possessions in North America by the peace of 1763.

King James the First, in 1621, granted Sir William Alexandgr. of
Menstry, a patent <o plant colonies in this country, named in the patent
“ Nova Scotia.” Sir William despatched a party of settlers to take
possession of the colony, who, on arriving, found that the country had
heen occupied by the survivors of the early French emigrants, and several
others, who had settled since the destruction of Port Royal by Axrgal,
whereupon they returned to England without effecting any settlement.
Charles the First confirmed his fathers grant to Sir William by patent

1 July 12th, 16235, and reappointed him governor-general *. Sir Wil-

On this occasion Charles the First founded the order of knights baronets of Nova ocotia,
the primary obiect of which wes. that each knight should contribute to the settlesent of this
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ham, subsequently,sent out an armament, under Sir David Im'k or Kirtck.
whd'in 1628 retook Port RoyaPk; but the French settlemegf of Cafle Sable
still held out, nor did the English obtain comp1ete possession of the
country. Sir William Alexander, thus in a great measure disappojnted
in the result of this expedition, and having involved himself in con-
siderable expenses in pushing forward his projects of colonization,”con-
veyed,lgn 1629, a large section of his territories of Nova §cotia to (flaudg
de la Tour ¥, under the title of Sir Claude St. Ktienne, knight, Seigneur
de la Bour and Vuarses+, creghing Rimeat the same fime a baronet of
Nova $cotia. Subsequently, by another patent in 1630, Sir William,
in eoffirmirfls the dignity of Baronet tosSieur St. Etwnnt;, the son of De
la Tour, erected two bargnies, one to be called the Barohy of St. Etienne,
the other the Barony of De la Tour, to be held as dependencies of the
crown of Scotland ; and under this patent it appears that some attempts
were made to form a Scotch settlethent at Annapohs'! .but Charles the
First, by the treaty of St. Germains, 111'1632 surrenderegl *all Lis Jight
to Lewis the Thirteenth of France; whereupon the French’ immediately
took possession of Nova Scotia, Cape’ Breton, and Canada, which had
been previously conquered by Sir David Kirk.

At the close of the civil war in 1654, Cromwell sent a force undgr
Major Sedgwick, who reduced the whole country, and compelled the
French to surrender at discretion; and it was confirmed to England by
the treaty of 1655. The English did not immediately fofm any sgftée-
ment, and retained only Port Royal in their possession, so that the French
sare by no means prevented from extending their settlements in the coun-
try. De la Tour afterwards preferred a claim to a section of the country
under the transfer, from Sir William Alexander; "and having satisfactorily
made it out, the Protector, by letters patent dated August 9th, 1656,

colony, in which he was to receive a large portion of land. The number of baronets was not to
exceed 150 they were to have pre-eminence before all knights bachelors, and to be endowed
with ample privileges. Those patents were ratified in parlisament ; but the knights never applied
themselves to the original purposes of their creation ; notwithstanding which the original titles,
with all the ordinary privileges of baronets, continued to the original knights and their descend-
ants, gany of whom are now in being.

* Chalmers’s Political Annals, 4to, edit. p. 92.

+ Massachusetts Records. 1 Ibid,

B2
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granted him, by the style of Sir Charles La Tour, and to Sir Thomas
Temple and William Crowne, the principal part of avhat now composes
Nova Scotia and New Brunswick. In this grant by Cromwell.no men-
tion,is made of the rights of Sir William Alexander himself, although
his charter, which was ratified in 1633 by the parliament of Scotland *,
is, made the gfou ndwork of De la Tour’s claim to that part of the country,
clalmed by him under it. Temple.purchased La Tour’s share, re-esta-
blished the - dlﬁ‘crmt settlements, and kept possession of the country
until it was again ceded to France by the treaty of Breda, 1667... Nova
Scotia was in fact during all this period inhabited by the French; and
although theymade but little progress in settling the country, yet their
population, priutipally occupied in carrying on the fur-trade with the
Indians, was scattered on the several rivers emptying themselves into
the Bay of Fundy.

The Fregchr gourt paid but lictle attention to this colony, which,
during the fwuentynyears succeeding the peace of Breda, enjoyed repose,
and received some addition by immigration. TheI'renchsettlers invariably
entered into close alliance with the Indians, and instructed them in some.
measure in the art of war; so that on the breaking out of war in 1689,
they became very troublesome neighbours to the English colonies. An
expedition from Massachusetts, under Sir William Phipps, in 1690, took
Port Royal and some other places. The terms of capitulation were, that
the inhabitants should be protected in the possession of their property and
the free.exetcise of their religion. Phipps, after dismantling Port Royal,
and burning one or two other places, quitted the colony, without leaving,..
any garrison behind him. The French of course resumed the govern-
ment of the colony. Irom this period until 1710, several predatory
expeditions were fitted out from the New England colonies against the
Fgencl'x settlements of Acadia, some of which were disgraced by horrible
atrocities. Atlength, in the year 1710, a considerable armament was fitted
out by the New Englanders, and the command given to General Nichol-
son, who proceeded to Port Royal, which surrendered to him after a short
siege. Incompliance with the terms of the capitulation, the French troops

Acts of parliament of Scotland—Taws of Scotland,



HISTORICAL SKETCH. %)

and governor were removed from the colony ; ant thereuporPPort Royal,
the hame of which was changefl to Annapolis in hondur of Queenl Anne,
was garmsoned by the Knglish troops, and Colonel Vetch appointed
governor. The French inhabitants were not by any means well disposed
towards the English, whom they continually harassed, go that it was
impossible for them to find any safety outside their fortified places,

NoVa Scotia waseunder that nanfaceded to England bjf the treaty of
Utrecht, 1713 ; from which pctiod to 1745, from the disaffection and
hostility of the neutral Frengl. and the consgquent® *indifference and
occasiopal severity of the English, Jttle or no improvement in the
condifion of*the colony tooR place. “Ihe cession of Nova Scotia to
England was again confirpned by the treaty of 1\1\-13-(,‘11!11191]9 in 1748;
and the peace having left a great number of military out of employment,
the idea was formed of settling the disbanded troops in this part of
America. Land was also offered tb civil §gtt1m‘s zi@c"'ordjpg to their
means, with the advantage of being copveyed witle their famslics to
the colony, maintained there one year after their arrival, supplied with
arms and ammunition for their defence, and with materials and utensils
properefor clearing their land, erecting houses, and prosecuting the
fishery, all at the expense of the British government. Nearly 4000
adventurers arrived in the colony in June, 1749, under the command
of Governor Cornwallis. They landed at Chebucto Harbour, and laid
the foundation of a town, which was called Halifax, in }dnpur of ¢he
Marquis of Halifax, then sccretary of state, who had the gr-eatc.@t share
iethie founding of the colony. Here, on July 14th, 1749, Governor
Cornwallis founded the first regular British government cstablished in
Nova Scotia*. Halifax continued rapidly to improve and increase in
population, notwithstanding the open enmity of the Indians, and the
secret hostility of the French inhabitants.

In consequence of an ambiguity in the wording of the treaties of
Cession, the French government pretended that Nova Scotia formed only
e part of what was called Acadia; the English, on the contrary, con-
tended thgt both names included the whole of the same country. This
led togcontinual disputes and conflicts between the governors and subjects

* The members of the first council appointed by Lord Cornwallis were Paul Mascarene,
Edward Howe, John Gorehgsh, Benjamin Green, John Salisbury, and Hygh Davidson.
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of the respa(tive powers, even in time of peace. The perpetual recur
rence of these*conflicts at length induckd the British governmernt to
adopt a very decisive measure for the extinction of disputes in this
quarter : the provincial authorities caused the Acadian settlers to come
together in their respective settlements, under the pretence of making
sdbme, communications relative to their welfare, and then, without pre-
vious notice, foxced them on board “several vessels provided for the pur-
pose, and thus transported and dispersed them through New England,
New York, and Virginia. Thé princip®! motive for this measure was
the well-founded apprehension thst the Acadians would assist the French
in the event of an invasion, by them, of the“colony-—an event which, how-
ever, did not ‘occur. Many of these cxpelled and deported settlers,
however, after the peace of 1763, returned to this province, and settled
in and about the townships of Clare, Yarmouth, and Argyle, where
their descendantsnow comvose the principal part of the population.
«The principal‘events between the settlement of Halifax in 1749 and
the peace of 1763 were, the establishment of the L.unenburg settlement
by a colony of Germans in 1753; the siege of Louisburg, and capture
*f Cape Breton and the Island of 8t. John, now Prince Edward’s Island,
fn 1758 ; the calling of the first provincial house of assembly by Governor
Lawrence in the same year; the settlement of several New England
emigrants on the former lands of the unfortunate Acadians; the conquest
of Canada m 1759 ; the alteration in the mode of electing the members
of the ‘house of assembly effected in 1761—(in which year also a formal
treaty was entered into with the Indians, whereby they submittedre
and were taken untler the protection of the king): in 1768, the cession
of this province, in common with all the possessions of the French in
North America, was again confirmed by France to England ; in this year
also the towniship of Londonderry was settled by Irish emigrants, and that
of Horton by New Englanders®. The population of the province,
which then included New Brunswick, Cape Breton, and Prince Edward’s
Island, was 18,000 souls; the value of its imports was 4812/, 9. 10d. and
of its exports 16,308/. 3s. 4d.
The face of the country is agreeably diversified with hill and dale,
This rapid detail, together with the chronological sketch in the Appendix, comprises s
much of 'the history of the province as needs to be ere separately rtated.



FAGE OF THE COUNTRY—LAKES—RIVERS. 7

but is nowhere mountainous, the highest hills not exceedmg 600 feet.
The highlands generally run north and south, branching dff‘in all direc:
tions, tegminating in gome instances in bold cliffs%on the coast, the most
remarkable of which is Aspotagoen, between Mahone and Margaret’s
Bay, and is about 500 feet high. Ardoise Hill, between Halifax and
+Windsor, is the highest land in the province. The Horton mounttains
run ne#rly north ang south ; and the north mountains, Whld’l are Washed
by the Minas basin, terminate in Cape Blomidon, whose head may be
often geen above the clouds by which it is sometimes encircled. The
highlapds which lie in the interior ot the counties of Annapolis, Shel-
bugyn*and Q'ueen s, are calledethe Blue Mountains, and are said to retain
traces of volcanic eruption.

This Province contains numerous lakes, which ‘are scattered over it
in every direction, many of them of considerable extent, and forming in
several places almost a continued chain of water cemmunication from
sea to sea. The largest is Lake Rosignol, situate partly i in each of the
three counties of Queen, Shelburn, and Annapohs It'is buflittle known,
and said to be thirty miles in length. It is the source of the Liverpool
river~the Merscy ; and in the same section of country there are sevegal
other lakes approaching within a short distance of the Mersey, ard comp-
municating with the head of Allan’s River, running into Annapolis Bay.
The Indians pursue this route in passing between Annapolis and Liver-
pool ; and it is supposed that there are but two short portages 1n the whq]e
distance. Lake George, another considerable lake, and sevehty qQr elghty
amgall ones, are situate in the township of Yarmouth. A chain of lakes
extengs from the head of the river Shubenacadie pearly to the harbour
of I-Iahfax, and by the completion of the Shubenacadie canal affords an
extensive inland nav1gat10n quite across this part of the province. There
are similar chains of lakes between Windsor and St. Margaret's Bay,
between the head of the river Avon and Chester, and between the
river Gaspereaux, in King’s county, and Gold River, in the county of
Lunenburg.

The rivers that intersect, beautify, and enrich the country are far
too pumerous even to be named. Perhaps there is no country in the
world better watered, nor any of equal extent containing so many rivers
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capable of na\ngatlon The principal are, the Annapolis, running
‘parallel’ with the Bay of Fundy from the townshin of Comwalhs, in
King’s county, and dlbehargmg itself into Annapolis Bay, navigable for
smal] craft and boats the greater part of its course; the Shubenacadie,
running from the Grand Lake, in the county of Halifax, dividing that
caunty from Hants county, and falling into Cobequid Bay, receiving
the tides, and navigablc for upwarés of thirty miles; the Avorr, which
recelves the: waters of the rivers St. Cm];\ Kermescook, and several
others, dlscharges itself mto the Bay of, T'tlma.‘s, and is navigablg for ‘a
considerable distance; the La Have, having its source in a chain of
lakes that also ft eds the (:a‘;pereaux river, in the county of Hants, tra-
verses the 'WhOlL munty of Lunenburg, and, ;tft(,r a course of about sixty
miles, discharges itself into the harbour of La I-Iave the Mersey, winding
from Lake Rosignol through the Queen’s county, and discharging in
Liverpool Harhc.m : the Medway, commencing in a chain of extensive
lakes in the ncarthem part’ of the Queen’s county, and discharging itself
into the noble harbour of Port Medway the Shelburne, discharged from
a chain of lakes in the northern part of that county (contiguous to the
«sources of the river Hubert in the county of Annapolis), and extending to
' within fifteen miles of the town of Shelburne, where it forms the noble har-
bour of that name ; the Clyde which rises upwards of forty miles in the in-
terior in an extensive chain of lakes,and is deemed one of the most beautiful
rivegs in Novu Scotia; the Tusket, with its numerous branches, many of
which ea:pand into lakes, the principal rising in the Blue Mountains, is
navigable for shipping about ten miles, dnd for boats above thirty ; and the.
St. Mary, the principal branch of which rises in College Lake, within a
very short distance of the Antigonish river, and, crossing nearly the whole
county of Sydney, from:north to south, forms the harbour of St. Mary,
where it becomes navigable for the largest vessels for about ten miles.
Besides these rivers, there are several others of nearly equal magnitude
and importance in all parts of the province, particularly those that run
into Pictou Harbour, Cumberland Basin, and the north-eastern coast of
the county of Cumberland. These several lakes and rivers beautify

the scenery, enrich the soil, and afford singular facilities for internal
communication,
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Anterlorly to 1748 so little had been done towards the local im;
provement of the celony, thate the whole province exhibited at that
late date put a dense forest; and although the pr uportlon of land still
unreclaimed from its wilds is indeed very considerable, yet there are dis-
tricts in which the arts of agriculture, guided by industry, have effected
extensive ameliorations in the condition of the country. Some tracts of
the province consist gf extensive batxens, interspersed here and t.here
among the forests, which forests are generally composed of large and

lofty tingber.



CHAPTER II

Divisipn of the Province inta €ounties, Districtsy and Townshipé.

Nova Scotia is divided dntd ten,gounties, including Cape Breton,
and the counties are subd1v1ded Jnto districts and townships. as_follows:

Lounge

: Hhmm::t €.

LUNENBURG

Quezy's Gounry

BHELBURNE

ANNAPOLIS

King's County

Districts.

Halifax

ColcHoster

Pictou .

Tomhships,

Halifax.
Dartmouth.
Preston,
Lawrence Town.
Truro.

{ Onslow.
Londonderry.
Pictou.
Egerton.
Maxwelton.
Chester.

3 Lunenburg.
Dublin,
Liverpool.

[ Shelburne.

Yarmouth,

< Barrington.

Argyle.

L Pubiﬁeo.

( Digby.

Clements.

Clare.

9 Annapolis.

Granville.

[ Wilmot.
Aylesworth.
Cornwallia.

Y Horton.

Bherbrooke,
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Counties. Distriots. Townships.

Wallace.

CUMBBRLAND ; i e w3 Argherst.

) Pambhorough.

Falmouth

Windsor.

Rawdon.

Kempt.

Douglas.

Newport.

St. Mar,.’i
{ﬂuysbﬂmugh.

Hants

Lower Munchester.

Wilmot.
Upper . . 3 . DorcheSter gor Antigonish.
g'Nurth Western.

Syokev

North Eastern.
Southern.

Care BrRETON

The townships are not all equal in extent. The inhabitants meet
for the purpose of voting money for the support of their poor, like an
English parish, and the principal townships send representatives to the,
House of Assembly.

The county of Halifax is the largest in the province, and stretches

uite across it, from the Atlantic Ocean to Cumberland Straits. On the
east of it lies the county of Sydney, on the west the courties of Hgnts
and Lunenburg, and on the north the county of Cumberland®; the whole
shere on the south is washed by the Atlantic Ocean, and a part of the
north by Northumberland Straits. It is divided jnto three districts,
and contains ten tgwnships. The districts are Halifax District, contain-
ing the townships of Halifax, Dartmouth, Preston, and Lawrence Town ;
the district of Colchester, containing the townships of Truro, Onslolv,‘
and Londonderry, besides several settlements not yet incorporated into
townships, as Economy, Shubenacadie, Stewiack, Tatmagouche, &c.;
and the district of Pictou, containing the townships of Pictou, Egerton,
and Maxwelton, The division of this county into districts seems to
haveepretty closely followed the natural division of the soil and face of
the country. All the southern part of the county, which lies upon the
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Atlantic, is high, broken, rocky land, interspersed here and there ‘with
some good strips, but in general barrenand unfit for cultivation. “The
same remark applies also to all that extensive tract of country surround-
ing .the Great Lake, and extending several miles both east and west.
But the country extending from the Great Lake northward to the head
of' the Minas Basin, and on both its shores, is altogether of a different
quality. The land is low and fertéile, adapted to agricultural purposes,
‘filled with limestone and gypsum, and affording indications of extensive
beds of coal and bther minerals. 'chis Lharacter applies to the country
extending along and for several miles to the cast and west of the Shu-
benacadie River. Again, that part of the county bordcrmg on North-
umberland St]“J.I..S, and the whole district nf Pictou, is every where
diversified with hill and dale, intersected by streams and brooks, which
form several rivers. The soil 1s generally rich and capable of high cul-
tivation, and. tlxs district is in fuct one of the best cultivated in the
provinge. About half way between Halifax and the Minas Basin oceurs
an extensive chain of lakes, the principal of which is called the Great
Lake. The Shubenacadie, the' largest river in the province, takes its
‘rise in those lakes. The point where it flows from the Great Lake is
21 miles from Halifax ; and thence to Cobequid, or Cumberland Bay, at
the head of the Minas Basin, where it discharges itself, is about 55 miles.
It is a mile in width at its mouth, receives the tide for about ten miles,
aml is securely navigable for about thirty more. Its banks are generallf’
prcmp;t')us, fringed and overhung with beautiful trecs. In its course it
receives several tributary rivers of no inconsiderable magnitude, the prig;
cipal of which, in this county, are the Stewiack, St. Andrew’s, and Gray’s
rivers. The navigation of this noble river has been completed, and, by
means of the Shubenacadie Canal, continued quite to Halifax, wherebyl
sea-going ships, drawing eight feet water, can be navigated from the
Minas Basin (head of the Bay of Fundy) quite across the province to
Halifax Harbour on the Atlanti¢ Ocean.

The harbour of Halifax is one of the finest in America. A thousand
vessels may ride in it in safety. It is accessible at all seasons of the year,
and easy of approach. It is situate in latitude.44° 39’ 26” north ang lon~
gitude 63° 87' 48" west from Greenwich, It lies nearly north and south,
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about sixteen miles in length, and terminates in 4 beautiful sheet of water
callel Bedford Basire, within which are ten square rgiles of'safe andmmge
The entmnce is marked by Sambro Head, on which a lighthouse was
erected soon after the settlement was established. Three miles from
Halifax, near the mouth of the harbour, lies MNabb’s Island, on, g_lw
western side of which stands Sherbrooke Tower, a circular stone baftery,
on the top of whichds a lantern. 'This island forms two entrances tos
the harbour—the eastern passage, which is only used.by sinall vessels,
and thewestern, which is uscd By all sh¥ps bougd to ahd from Halifax.
Immedately opposite the town is Ggorge Island, which is regularly
fortifi¢d, and forms the chief defence of°the place. .

The town of Halifax is, in point of extent and pgpulation, the third
town in British North America. It was founded, upon the first per-
manent settlement of the English in this province, by Governor Corn-
wallis in 1749. It is situated on the Western,gide of tht hathour, on the
declivity of a hill 240 fect above the levgl of the sea®, Theye are eight
streets running through the town, intergected by fifteen others, laid out
with regularity, some of them paved, and the others macadamized. The
town and suburbs are upwards of two miles in length, and about half
a mile in width. It has been very much improved within the last five
years. There are meat, vegetable, and fish markets, all extremely well
supplied. The fish, in point of quality, variety, and cheapness, may vie
with any in the world. There are two episcopal churches,'t.wo presty?
terian, two baptist, one Roman catholic, one methodist, and one Sanda-
minian, chapels. The catholic chapel is an elegant spacious structure,
built of, freestone. Amongst the public buildings # the Government-
house, built of freeszzone, situate at the south end of the town, and occupied
by the licutenant-governor of the province for the time being. The pro-
vince building is the best-built and handsomest edifice in North America
It is built of freestone, and is 140 feet in length, seventy in width, and
forty-i;wn in height. It contains all the provincial offices—secretary’s,
surveyor-general’s, treasurer’s, prothonotary’s, collector’s of customs, &c.;
also the copncil-chamber, House of Assembly room, and superior courts.
It is sifuate in the centre of the town, within a square, which is enclosed
by an iron railing. The Court-House is a plain brick building, in which
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the tourts, 6f.common pleas and sessions of the peace arc held, apd in
which ‘there is' an exghange-room for tHe mercharfts, There is also a
Bridewell or House of Correction, and a poor-houge. Dalhousic College,
established in 1820, is a spacious and handsome structure, situate at the
end of the old military parade.

Halifax has been always the principal naval station of British North
~America; and here is a king’s docﬁ-yard which is-enclosed towards the
town by a high.stone wall, and contains within it all the requisite work-
shops, w arehouses, and stores, besidesr ~ommodious residences~for the
officers and servants belonging to the yard, it is on a more extensive
footing than any in America. In the rear of the dock-yard, on a‘height
that overlooks the works and harbour, is the admiral’s house, a plain
stone building, occupied by the senior naval officer on the station. There
are also a residence for the military commandant, two barracks, and a
military hospital.

Halifax ‘contained, in 1790, 700 houses and 4000 inhabitants; in
1828, 1580 houses and 14,439 iphabitants. It is the seat of government,
the principal emporium of the trade of the province, and returns two
members to the House of Assembly. Besides Dalhousie College, there
wre a grammar-school, with an endowment of 200/ from the province,
three large schools on the national and Lancasterian plan, and several
common schools. There are no fewer than six weekly newspapers pub-
listied, and‘j't has several charitable institutions. The manufactures car-"
ried on in Halifax are still in an imperfect state: they consist of a sugar-
refinery ; distilleries of rum, gin, and whiskey ; breweries of porter ae.2
ale ; and factories ol soap, candles, leather, flour, and cordage, and a few
other minor articles. Halifax was declared a free warehousing-port in
1826, and its trade is very considerable. In 1828, the exports, exclusive
¢of the coasting-trade, amounted to 246,852/. in 553 vessels, containing
61,511 tons, and navigated by 8328 men; and the imports 788,892/
in 544 vessels, containing 62,829 tons, and navigated by 8340 men.
Nearly the whole of the import and better than one-half of the export
trade of the province are carried on at Halifax. ‘There were owned at
Halifax in 1828 seventy-three square-rigged vessels and seveﬁty:-sevén
schooners ; of which seventy were employed in the West India trade,
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four between Halifax and Great Britain, six in the trade wlth forelgn'
Eurape and Brazil, gnd the remainder in the ﬁbhery Thefe is a respect-
able privgte banking-establishment at Halifax, and'the Falmouth packet
regularly arrives with the mails once a month. The situation of Halifax
is very beautiful. The noble harbour in front, Bedford Basin beyond,

and the north-west arm in the rear, with the extensive forests in the back-
ground unite in exciting the admirasion of every beholdgr.

The township of Halifax extends westward to the boundary line
between this county and Lunenburg ‘coynty. The lanll is of the worst
descrlption in the province, bemg both naked and barren ; but the coast
is almost oneunmt(,rrupted suecession oﬁ harbours. The i%rqt 1s Sambro
it lies about a league north-west of the lighthouse, is casy of access, deep,
and perfectly sheltered. There was a small settlement founded on it in
1780, and it contains a small fishing population. Between Sambro
and Margaret’s Bay are Pennant, Upper and Lower Prespeet, Molineux,
Dover, and Indian harbours, upon each of which are settled a fewgfishem
men. St. Margaret’s Bay is safe and capauous It is four leagues in
length and two in width, but at its enfrance only two miles wide. It
contains within it many smaller harbours and coves, affording shelter fos
ships of the greatest burden. The soil about the bay is fertile and wel}
cultivated. It was settled by the descendants of some German and
French families in 1783. Several streams fall into the bay, abounding
with salmon and other fish.

The township of Dartmouth lies on the castern side of Halifax Har-
bour. The land is of a far better description than that of Halifax town-
sﬁ;.i) There are some very fine farms belonging tq, the descendants of
the oﬁéinal German settlers. A chain of lakes in this township, con-
nected with the sotirce of the Shubenacadie River, suggested the idea of
the Shubenacadie Canal, which now completes a water communicatiop .
between Halifax Harbour and the Basin of Minas. The town of Dart-
mouth lies opposite to Halifax, on the eastern side of the harbour, which
is here about a mile wide; it considerably increased in size, population,
and wealth during the late war, but has not since been so flourishing.
A steem—‘l::oat constantly plies between Dartmouth and Halifax for the
accommodation of passengers.
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The toavnshxp of Lawrence Town is situate on the coast to the east
of Dastmouth townshlp It was laid out in 1754, and contains 29,000
acres. Itis well watered ; but the soil, with the exception of sqme marsh
and;interval land, is inferior, being mostly rocky and barren. The har-
bours are Colf: Harbour, Lawrence, and Three Fathom Harbour, which
ar'e 'suitable only for small vessels.

The township of Preston is situated on the egst of the township of
Dartmouth, and on the north and in the rear of Lawrence Town. It
was laid out and‘ grante::i in 1784 to 388, ‘Proprietors—-loyalists, djsbanded
soldiers, and free negroes. The negro settlers were industrious and thrifty,
but some agents of the Africar. Company induced them o remove to
Sierra Leone. ® The land in this township is inferior and stony, but its
proximity to Halifax gives it a value it would not otherwise possess.

The tract of country coastwise from Lawrence Town township to
the boundary line of Sy dm,y couuty is in general of inferior soil, and
thegefgre but, thinly setfled. 'There are, however, several small but
thriving settlements on the harbours and rivers, which are very nume-
rous, the inhabitants being mostly engaged in the fishery. A short
Aistance beyond Lawrence, the river Musquedoboit discharges itself into
the sea. This is a fine river, rising near the Stewiack country, producing
very good timber, and having some thriving settlements on its banks.
Jeddore forms a long shallow bay, intricate and unsafe. Ship or Knowles
Harbour is Geep, bold, and distinguished by a white cliff resembling at
a distaace a ship under sail. The anchorage is good and safe in every
part of it. Charles River, which runs into this harbour, proceeds from
a chain of lakes at a small distance, of about twelve miles in extent, the
lands on both sides of which are clothed with very superior timber.
Beyond this lie several harbours, on which there are some small set-
tlements.

There are few finer agricultural tracts than the country to the
eastward of the river Bhubenacadie, which composes the district of
Colchester. It abounds with gypsum, lime, and coal, and is exceedingly
well watered. About twenty miles up the river Stewiack, veins of ceal
rise to the surface, and freestone, lime, and roofing slate are foynd in
the same neighbourhood; salt springs also, of considerable strength,
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occur. There exist no obstacles to this river being made nawigable for
boatsof ten tons’ burden to the canal. On the northern brahch of Gay’s
River, whigh falls into the Shubenacadie, a valuable Vein of coal hus been
exposed to view by the action of the water, and iron ore, limestone, gnd
slate are found in the same neighbourhood. Yine, spr;me, and other
vgluable timber abound in this quarter, and the land is of ';rery superior,
quality.

The first township in this fine country is Truro, This township
was originally settled by the Fgench, who were forcﬁ)ly expelled in
1755. 1t was subsequently granted, in 1765, to some Irish emigrants,
several sof whom came to this 'provmce, sunder a Cnlonel MNutt, who
found the remains of the French improvements, a quantlt}'(!f diked marsh
land, orchards, &c. in a state of tolerable preserva’uon The township
contains 50,000 acres, and abounds with gypsum and limestone. The
upland soil is good, well cultivated, ant frultful and thete is a consider-
able quantity of marsh and interval land of extreme fenlhtx, The.toyvn-
of Truro is situated on the south side of tobequld Bay, near its head,
and contains about 100 houses. There are an episcopal and a presbyterian
church, a court-house, a jail, custom-house, post-office, and masonic-hall..
There are good roads to Halifax, Pictou, &c., and a handsome bridge,
over the Salmon River. Truro township returns one member to the
House of Assembly.

The township of Onslow adjoins that of Truro, and isituated gne
*the north side of Cobequid Bay, by which it is bounded on‘the south,
and on the west by the township of Londonderry. The soil, like that
of Truro, is in general good. The Salmon, North, agd Chiganois rivers
run through it; the land on the banks of each of which, particularly on
the North River, is of very superior quality. Some interval land on this
Jiver has been known to produce fourteen crops of wheat in succession,
without manure. Salt springs have been discovered, and coal abounds,
a seam of which has been worked for some years. The original French
inhabitants had settlements in this township, and after their expulsion it
was settled by Irish emigrants under Colonel M‘Nutt in 1761, who found
the relpain;s of the French roads, buildings, and orchards, which they
of course immediately occupied. The whole front of the township is
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cleared upland ; there-s no town: there are several saw and grist mills.
Halifax is the principal market for the produce ofathis and Truro town-
ships. Onslow returns one member to the House of Assembly.
 The township of Londonderry is situate on the north side of Cobe-
quid Bay, arlldhto the west of Onslow. It was also originally settled by
the French, and afterwards by Colonel M“Nutt, 1763. The land is in
gen?eral very ssood, whether marsk, upland, or interval, of thé latter of
which there is a considerable proportiofi. There are seven small villages
in this township, in which are six grist-mills, five saw-mills, two carding
and two oat mills; and it sends one member to the provincial par-
liament. Tmrq, Onslow, and ILondondGerry, with the several settle-
ments Econoiny, Stewiack, Tatmagouche, Salmon River, &c., comprise
a tract of country which, for richness of soil, mineral productions, local
convenience, and beauty of scenery, is quite equal to any in this pro-
vince. Cobeqtid Bay, around which they are all situate, is easily navi-
gable on ite norchern shore by vessels of any magnitude, and on its
southern by vessels of 150 tons, abounds with fish, and has several small
harbours and inlets. The produce is carried to Halifax market, and
exported to St. John's, New Brunswick ; cargocs are also assorted for
the West Indies, and lumber, in some quantities, exported to Europe:
it is, in short, one of the best-circumstanced, most fruitful, populous,
and best-cultivated districts in Nova Scotia. There are considerable
qeantities df land as yet ungranted in this district, estimated at about
50,009 acres, scattered up and down, about one-half of which may be fit
for cultivation.
That part of the county of Halifax called the district of Pictou
contains the three townships of Pictou, Egerton, and Maxwelton. It
is a diversified county of hill and dale, well watered by numerous streams
.and rivers. The soil is very good, and it has been as well cultivated and
is as productive as any in the province. It abounds with coal, iron ore,
copper, freestone, and lime. The great coal field of this district is very
éxtensive, and the coal is of the very best quality, and is now being
worked by the lessees of His late Royal Highness the Duke of York,
Messrs. Rundell and Bridge, of London. It has several good harbours,
the principal of which are Pictou, Merigomish, Carriboo, and Tatma-
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gouche, in all of which the Shore and Labrador fisheries arg carned on
to a great extent. The timber of this district is also of a sﬁpenor'kmd,
particularly the birch, which is considered the best in America. This
district, though one of the last settled, is the most important part of $he
province; in fertility of soil, abundance and value of ifs mineral pro-
dyctions, proximity to the fishery, and facilities for carry'ing it on,’ 1t,
has the advantage of every other part of Nova Scotia. , The Frénch
made very few settlements heré while the province was under their
dominiog. The first British settlers werg from l’hllad'elphla, in 1765,
and some Scotch from the lllrrh]dn(]b to these were added further
emigrants from Scotland, ande in 1784 e considerable number of dis-
banded soldiers. 'The population is principally of bwttﬁh descent, and
certainly as énterprising, industrious, thriving, and wealthy as that of
any other portion of this country.

The principal port is Picton Harbour. It has a bgt af its mouth,
on which is twenty-two feet at low water: inside the dar if .becogneg a
capacious and beautiful basin, with five, si%, and nine fathom”anchorage
on a muddy bottom. It is admirably well situated on the Straits of
Northumberland, opposite to Prince Edward Island, on the route from
Halifax to Quebec, between which places there is not a safer or better
harbour.

The principal town of this district is Pictou; it is situated on the
hd¥bour of that name, about three miles from the entrance.e Althoug.h'
not very regularly laid out, the houses are generally better thad in any of
the other provineial towns ; many of them are built of stone. It contains
four places of worship—an episcopal, a Roman cathglic, and two pres-
byterian chapds There are also the Pictou Academy, a grammar-school,
court-house, and public library. The population in 1828 was nearly
1500 souls, and it has since very rapidly increased; it cannot now be
less than between 2500 and 3000. Pictou has been declared a fiee
warehousing port, and its trade is very considerable in lumber, coal, and
the fishery. Coasters from all parts of the Gulf of St. Lawrence resort
to Pictou, and its exports have amounted to 100,000/ in a single year.
One hundred vessels have been loaded here with timber for Great



%0 NOVA SCOTIA.

Britain, and its exports to the West Indies were not less extensive
and important.

There are still in this district some considerable portions of ungranted
land in the interior, on the borders of Sydney county; the aggregate may
be about 70,000 acres, upon the whole tolerably good land ; and although

fiot immediately adjacent to the sea, yet in no place above twelve or
fifteen miles from it, and in all instances intersected by rivers which run
into the sea at Pictou, Merigomish, and Antigonish harbours.

The poputation of the county of Halifax in the year 1817 was
80,196 souls. The population, live stock, quantity of land cultivated,
and produce, in 1827, as appears by a census then taken, were as follows.
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Halifax Town . |14,439) 399 458 391 4931 1,020 128 4,1051 23,6014 1,021
Halifax Township * | 5,686| 837 4304 5,406 2,164 | 9,678| 4,223 | 23,201 101,318| 7.319
|Dartmouth ditto . 1,0701 1565 2021 345 180 652 1631 1,215] 10,380( 422
(Preston ditto . . 1,043 13 280 138 221 206 56 9211 11,320 507
' |Lawrence Town ditto | 1,391 75 | 1,446 1,887 7891 1,6081 774| 2,883\ 33,7391 1,684
Sundry Settlements 1,267 2 790 | 8781 429| 806 90 9971 22,204 4920
Truro Township 1,380 285 | 1,461 2,2095| 68| 4,651 2,787 12,053 | 53,645 | 2,654
Onslow ditto . 1,239 245 | 1,768} 1,263} 1,314 5,729 3,035 13,631 ] 54,935| 2,832
Londonderry ditto . 1,308 249 | 2,045} 2,431} 1,330 4,924 4,195 12,114 | 55,000| 3,581
Sundyy Settlemenss | 3,686| 661 | 4,913| 6,724 | 3,400 13,931 | 8:627 | 26,220 128,755, 7,669
Picten Town . 1,439 73 192 a4 23 766 4741 2,433| 9,815| 380
Picton Township . | 4,777| 487 | 4,411| 7,572 8,515)17,996 12,696 | 29,793 198,955 | 4,176
Egerton ditto . | 5,622 819 | 5,593 (10,798 | 3,374 24,270 22,121 | 51,152 133,444 | 5,577
Maxwelton .| 2,111 230 1,505| 2,614 1,022 6,149 2,607 | 14,184 | 44,445| 1,635

"Total county of Halifax|46,548 | 4,630 (29,464 43,534 [24,122192,976 162,246 |194,902 '876,546 |40 397

COUNTY OF SYDNEY.

The county of Sydney is the most easterly part of the province: it
is bounded on the west by the county of Halifax ; on the south by the
Atlantic Ocean; on the east by Chedabucto Bay, the Gut of Canseau,
and St. George’s Bay; and on the north by Northumberland - Straits.
It is divided into two districts, called the Upper and the Lower ‘District,
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COUNTY OF SYDNEY, A

and contains seven townships, viz. Dorchester, Arisaig, Tracadie, St.
Andrew’s, Manchestgr, Guysboyough, and St. Mary’s. The soileof the
northern gnd eastern part of this county—interval, dlluvial, and upland——
is equal to any in the province. The agricultural produce is very con-
siderable, and large quantities are exported. The lumber trade is ex-
tensively carried on, and the fisheries are the best in the province. Ftdis
exceedingly well watgred, abounding,with lakes and rive:'s, and no par;:
of the province affords so many fine harbours. This county gontains the
greatest, quantity of crown or u.ngranth land of any4n the province.
It has been estimated at 120,000 acres of available land, situate between
Guysberough and Coventry Harbour it one direction, between Milford
Haven and St. George’s Bay in another, and to the’ westward of the
river St. Mdry in a third.

The township of Dorchester,or Antigonish, is situate on and about the
bay of that name. The first settlement made by the English was in 1784,
and it was materially increased in 1795 by emigtants frgm Scotland. Dor;
chester, or Antigonish, is the shire townfof the district. 1t is situated
about a mile above the navigation on Arﬁigonish River. It has but one
principal street, and contains a court-house, a Roman catholic, a pres.
byterian, and a baptist church. It is a very pretty village, and is the
principal trading place in the district. 'The harbour is about six miles
in length; but the entrance is narrow, over a bar with only nine feet at
High water, and difficult of access.

The townships of Arisaig, St. Andrew’s, and Tracadie are extgemely
fertile, well peopled, and highly cultivated. The inhabitants are ex-
tensively engaged in the lumber trade and fisheries, and are an industrious
thriving population.

The township® of Manchester contains all that part of the county
lying between Milford Haven and the Gut of Canseau. The soil is of
an excellent quality; lime abounds; coal has been discovered in several
places at the head of Milford Haven, and is supposed to extend over a
large tract of country. The population is scattered and not numerous.

The township of Guysborough reaches from Crow Harbour to the
northern bounds of the Lower District. The original grant was 100,000
acres, made to some American loyalists in 1784. The land of this town-
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ship is extrem ely good, but the fisheries afford such lucrative employ ment
that very ]mle more land is cultivated than is sufficient for internal
supply ; but great quantities of horses, black cattle, and sheep gre reared,
and several cargoes are annually exported to Newfoundland, together
with considerable quantities of butter.
-+ Milford flaven is situate at the head of Chedabucto Bay. Though

narrow and difficult at the entrance, having a bar with eighteen feet at
“low water, it opens into a spacious and Leautiful basin, about half a mile
wide and threesmiles long, completely sheltered and affording good
anchorage: after a narrow passage of two miles, it opens into another
spacious harbour for four or five miles more, navigable tke whele way
for ships of 500.¢ons’ burden. The town of Guysborough is situate at
the western side, riear the entrance of the lower basin, and ‘commands a
full view of Chedabucto Bay and its southern shore as far as Canseau,
and few placesopossess more beautiful natural scenery. It contains a
court-housé, an episcopal, a Roman catholic, and a methodist church,
besides several chapels scattered through the township. The land on
both sides the harbour is very good, and has been long since cleared
of timber, now affording extensive natural meadows and pastures.

The extensive bay of Chedabucto is formed by Cape Canseau on
the west, and Cape Hogan, in the island of Cape Breton, on the east,
and is twenty-five miles in length and fifteen in breadth. Itis altogether
frec from rorks and obstructions, and is navigable throughout for the
larg(.st ships. Milford Haven and Guysborough Harbour lie at its head,
and Fox Island, Philip Harbour, Crow Harbour, and Canseau on its
southern shore. The fisheries of this great bay are as productive as any
in the known world. The inhabitants are all en rraged in them, and the
quantities of cod, herring, and mackerel taken are immense.

Canseau is situate at the southern extremity of the county. The
greater part of this district is a barren naked rock, with a few hills of
good land. The town-plot, called Wilmot, is situate on the south-
western side of Canseau Harbour. It has lately been much improved.
The harbour of Canseau is a very excellent one, accessible at all seasons
of the year. The strait is called Little Canseau, and is navigable for
the largest ships, affording safe and commodious anchorage. During the
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prevalence of westerly gales, all the vessels to and from the,Gulf of St.
Lawrence anchor hewe, and wais for a favourable wind ; anfl 1t is & great
resort forgthe fishing-craft in the season.

St. Mary was formed into a township in 1818, and contains 280,000
acres. The lands along the shores are stony and barren, but improve
very much in the interior. Timber of a superior description abounds,
and there are extensiye tracts of ungmsanted crown lands of good quility.
The first settlement in this townShip was made at Coventry Harbour, by
Americgn refugees, in 1784, who built a small town *called Stormont,
beautifylly situate on the east mde of the harbour, where it is about half
a mile wide, and navigable for ships of'¢he line. Coventry Harbour is
a noble port, navigable for the largest ships for tenemiles above its
entrance, and forms the most extensive inlet from Halifax to Canscau.

The river St. Mary falls into the Atlantic Ocean about ninety miles
east of Halifax, and fifty west of Canseau. It has a bgr entrance, upon
which there is eleven feet water at lowest ebb'tide, and is pz;vigaple.for.
vessels of the first class for about nine fniles. The river divides into
several branches, flows through a well-wooded country, and is remark-
ably convenient for floating down lumber. Sherbrooke is situate at the
extreme head of the navigation of the river, and is accessible to vessels.
of 50 to 100 tons. A very considerable lumber trade has been and is
carried on from this place. Several good roads have been opened through
the township, and its natural advantages are such as to eequire oply
population and capital to make it equal to any settlement in ‘the aoun.ty

of Sydney.
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY.

This county is bounded on the north-west by the Chignecto Channel,
Cumberland Basin, the Missiguash River, and the boundary line between
Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, which runs from the source of that
river to Bay Verte; on the east by the Straits of Northumberland ;
on the south-east by the county of Halifax ; and on the southswest by
the township of Tansborough and part of the Bay of Fundy. It contains
two townships, Amherst and Wallace, ¥esides the seversl settlements
of Fort Lawrtrnce, Maccan, Nappan, Minudie, West Chester, &c. The
soil of this county is various. On the shore of the Chignecto Channel
and Cumberland Basin there are considerable tracts of valuable marsh
land. The upleuntd is in general'of very superior quality, of which a
‘large tract, quite-through the county from Minudie to Tatmagouche,
remains ungranted, and at the disposal of the crown. Coal, lime,
and gypsum are found almost every where. Iron ore is indicated in
several places, and copper ore at Toney’s River; and there are good salt
springs at Philip River. This county is remarkably well watered, being
traverscd by several rivers, and it has several fine harbours on both its
shores.

. The settlement of Fort Lawrence adjoins the boundary line, lying
betwein the rivers Missiguash and La Planche. It consists principally
of dike land, and is one of the most productive in Nova Scotia. Vast
quantities of hay are raised, and herds of cattle fed, upon these lands, and
the farmers are generally wealthy and independent.‘

The township of Amherst contains 26,750 acres, of which a con-
siderable quantity is dike land, and the remainder interval, upland, and
wood. Meadow and grazing are the principal agricultural pursuits, and
beef and butter are raised and exported to a large amount. The little
town or rather village of Amherst is in a flourishing ¢ondition. It is
situate near the narrow isthmus which here separates the Bay of Fundy
from Northumberland Straits; it is therefore connected with the
navigation of both. and can with the same facilitv avail itself of the
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markets of St. John and Miramichi. The river Tidnish in t}us township
flows into Bay Verte, between the head of which river and’ the gource
of the river La Planche, which falls into the Bay of Fundy, there is a
portage of only one mile. The near approach of the waters of the Bay
of Fundy and of the Straits of Northumberland to each other at this point
naturally suggests the idea of connecting the navigation of both by a canal.

The ground has been examined and ‘surveyed, and the practicability of
such a work ascertained. The expense of making a canal for sea-going
vessels of eight feet draught has been estimated at 67,7.28! 14«? and no
doubt a work of such importande, not only to this province and New
Brunswick, but to the whole ingercolonif] trade of British North America,
will in a short time be effected, cither by public or privgtd funds.

The settlements on the Maccan, the Nappan,-and the Hibbert
River, and at Minudie, consist principally of the same quality of dike
land as Ambherst, and are cultivated in the same Jngnner, meadow
and grazing. The settlement at Minudie tonsists ()f Alcadians, the
descendants of those who escaped the geperal expulslcm of d¢hat fJeo'Ple
in 1755. They are a temperate, mdus!xous people, forming a little
distinct community, and pursuing their own customs, language, and
religion with remarkable pertinacity. Great quantities of shad are taken
at Minudie, in weirs in the flats, which are exposed at low water. A°
quarry of grindstones is worked to a great extent in the neighbourhood,
and the stones exported in large quantities to the United §tates. Coal
also is found here, and if properly worked might supply the .demand™of
St. John and all the places on the Bay of Fundy.

Tatmagouche Bay is situate at the north-eastern border of the county,
on the gulf shore adjoining the district of Picten. * The river of that
name runs into it.* The lands on both are fertile and well cultivated,
and the settlement is in a thriving condition.

The township of Wallace contains several populous and growing
settlements. The town of Wallace is situate at the mouth of the noble
bay of that name. It was settled by loyalists from New York, who en-
gaged largely in the lumber trade, which is still carried on in this part
of the country. Wallace Bay is navigable for the largest ships for above
six miles, and for smaller ones above twelve, The river Remsheg, after
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a course of twenty-five miles, discharges itself into the bay, and is well
stocked vith salmon and trout. The lands on the bay and river are of
a very superior quality, and the country is well settled. On the opposite
side of the bay is Fox Harbour. It was settled by highlanders from
Scotland about twenty years ago, who are now both comfortable and
affluent. Pugwash settlement is situated on Pugwash Bay, the best
‘harbour in the county. The shore is so bold, that vessels of 500 tons
may lie with safety, at all times, withir twenty yards of it. Above the
channel, which ds not more than a quarter of a-mile wide, it becomes a
beautiful basm, into which the river Pugwash, which rises in a chain of
lakes about seven miles distarfc, discharges itself. The land, on the
harbour and 'fiyer is of superior quality, although not very populous.
The river Philip, which is a union of several others rising in the interior
of the county, also discharges itself into the sea near Pugwash Harbour.
This river is repnarkable for the quality and size of its salmon and trout,
and gasper eux and shal are also abundant. There are several salt
'spﬁngs in #his district: the most remarkable is one on the Black River,
a branch of the Philip, which gwes five gills of salt to every two gallons
by common boiling, and the brine is highly medicinal. The settlements
‘on this river have not flourished. The inhabitants are principally en-
c‘ga,ged in the lumber trade, and do not pay as much attention to agricul-
ture as in other settlements in the county. Goose River forms a small
barred harbour between Pugwash and Tidnish. There are some good
tricts of dike and interval land, but the scttlement is as yet in its infancy.

West Chester is situated on the summit of the Cobequid highlands,
in the centre of the county. It was settled by loyalists from New York.
The soil is naturally geod, but the local situation is much against it, and
the settlement is on the decline.

The county of Cumberland is well intersected by roads in all direc-
tions. The great road from Halifax to Quebec runs quite through it.
Although containing some of the richest, and the greatest quantity of
dike and other valuable land, of any county in the province, agricul-
ture, with the exception of meadow and grazing, is not as extensively
followed as it might be. Little grain is exported from this county, but
the export of beef and butter is considerable. The grazing farmers in
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the districts bordering on the Bay of Fundy are as wealthy and in-
dependent as any in Nova Scotia ; but the same remark will not apply
to the set¢lements on the Gulf shore, where the inhahitants are prin-
cipally engaged in the lumber trade, to the neglect of their rich gnd
valuable lands.

The county returns two members to the provincial parliament, and
the township of Amjerst one. The population of the whole county
was, in 1817, 2965 souls. The cénsus of 1827 gave the fo!lowing results
as to population, agriculture, and stock.
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HANTS COUNTY.

The county of Hants is bounded on the north by the Minas Basjn,
on the east by the Shubenacadie river, which divides it from Halifax
county, on the south by Halifax county, and on the west by the King’s
county and the county of Lunenburg. It contajns six townships:
Windsor, Falmouth, Newport, Rawdon, Kemp't, and Douglas. The
county returns two members to the provincial parliament, and the town-
ships of Windsor, Falmouth, and Newport, each ouve. The greater part
of this county was originally settled by the French, who enclosed the
dikes and marsh lands, and brought them into a state of cultivation
and improvement, so as to enable them, before their expulsion from the
province in 1755, to export wheat and other grain to Boston. After
their expulsion their farms and improvements were laid waste and aban-
doned, until within about the last twenty-five years, when the English
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became aware of the value of these tracts, and they were granfed in
extensive lots to the then members of Council, anéd others.

Windsor township was originally settled by the French, as before
mentioned. It is an agreeably diversified county of hill, dale, and lawn.
It contains a considerable quantity of marsh and interval land. The
climate is considered warmer than either to the north or south of it, and
it is well adapted for the growth of wheat and other grain. The orchards
originally planted by the French have been improved and extended, and
fruit is abundart and good. 'There is abundance of gypsum found in
this township, and it forms a very considerable article of export to the
United Stateg. The local scenery is vety beautiful, and coming from
Halifax, the colitrast to the general character of the southern part of
that county is striking and remarkable. The river Avon receives the
Kenneteook, St. Croix, and'Cnckmagon, and conducts them to the Minas
Basin. The rise aud fall of the tide at Windsor is thirty feet, and the
‘beq of the river is at times entirely exposed. The extreme breadth of
the river here is about 1000 ﬁ;et, and it is intended to ercct a bridge
over it. Windsor town is the shire town of the county. 1t is sitnate
at the confluence of the St. Croix, and the Avon rises forty-five miles
from Halifax ; the great mail-road from that place to Annapolis running
through it. Windsor contains an university (King’s College), an academy,
episcopal, Roman catholic, presbyterian, baptist, and methodist churches,
a gourt-house, and county jail. Packets ply between Windsor and St.
John’s, New Brunswick, and also to Parrsborough, across the Minas
Basin, and the mail-coach runs to Halifax and Annapolis three times a
week. Windsor is the only town in the county of Hants; there being
nothing like a town in any of the other townships.

Falmouth township is situated between Windsor and Horton town-
ship, in the King's' county. It was granted in 1759, and contains
50,000 acres. A range of mountains form the rear, a gradually sloping
upland the centre, and a border of marsh the front of this township.
It is well cultivated and thickly settled, and the people are generally in
comfortable circumstances.

Newport township lies on the eastern side of the river St. Croix. It
was granted in 1761, and contains 58,000 acres. There is a good portion
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of dike and interval land, and the upland is generally very superior,
particularly on the niver St. Cwix and Kennctcook. Thid township is
well cultizated by a native population, descended from the first New
England settlers.

Rawdon township lies between Newport and Douglas. It was laid
out in 1784, and contains 24,000 acres. The first settlers were New,
England loyalists. I consists principally of very good upland. “The
chief cultivation is hay for the Halifax market,

Keypt township contains 80,000 acrgs. 1t is situattd on the borders
of the Minas Basin, and consists almost wholly of upland, which is deep
and preductve. At the ebbeof the tide the flat shore Js exposed to
view, and the alluvial deposit thereon affords an inexhaustible supply
of excellent ‘manure.. This township contains both gypsum and lime in
abundance, and there is a good cod and herring fishery.

Douglas township is boundced on she north by Cobeguid Bay, on the
east by the Shubenacadie river. It contains "105,00Q acres, granted to.
Colonel Small, for the location of the gd battalion 84th fegiment in
1784. It is one of -the finest townships in the province, containing a
great proportion of marsh, interval, and upland, and abounding with
coal, gypsum, lime, freestone, and slate. Nothing can cxceed the fer-
tility of the lands on the Shubenacadie river.

The population of this county in 1817 was 6318 souls. The census
oY 1827 gives the following results as to population, live stock, and agri-
cultural produce,

I! Live Stock. T . Produce.
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Windsor Township . ‘2,(}1;51 8841 1,642| 2,761 H64| 6,195 4,433 (10,337 42,631] 3,555
Falmouth ditee | gfv ! 248| 839 1,555| 034| 3,017| 2,100 5,249 | 20,885} 2,394
Newport ditto 1,960 | 528| 2,781 4,417 1,390 (11,035 | 4,350 10,437 | 54,620 | 3,626
Rawden ditto . 865, 247 898] 1,760| 652] 5,571 1,586 5,558 25,665 1,996
Kempt ditto 5495) 148| 563| 769| 390( 2,271 7731 2,035| 9,350 47C
Douglas ditto . 2,273 |' 431 2,752} 3,6011 1,797 9,442 16,188 [11,712] 6,688 5,430
Total Hants county 3,69'}'1 2,486 9,4754[14,8“3 5,027 137,631 {18,520 45,328 227,948 119,977
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KING'S COUNTY

. Is bounded on the south by the counties of Hants and Lunenburg,
on the west by the county of Annapolis, on the north by the Bay of
Fundy, and on the east by the county of Cumberland. It contains four
towhships, Iorton, Cornwallis, Aylesford, and Pgrrsborough.

The township of Horton was originally settled by the French, and
in it was situated the French village of Minas, of which no traces are
now to be seen, except the cellars of the houses, a few old orchards, and
the constant appendage of an Acadian settlement, scattered groups of
willows. It eontains 100,000 acres, and was settled by the English in
1760, with emigrants from New England, who found the dikes much
dilapidated, and the meadows under water. After considerable difficulty,
delay, and expcpse, the tide was-at length shut out from all the old
enclosed lands, by means of embankments. This township has about
4000 acres of diked land, beiides interval and salt marshes; and the
upland, the hilly and broken, is mostly good tillage land. The only
village in the township is Kentville, on the borders of Cornwallis. It
contains several good private houses, a court-house, a jail, and a good
grammar school. There are one episcopalian, one presbyterian, two
baptist, and two methodist churches, in the township, eleven grist-mills,
two oat-mills, five saw-mills, one flax, and three fulling-mills, and two
carrdjn{; machines. The river Gaspereaux, which flows through the entire
township, abounds with salmon, trout, smelts, and the fish called gas-
pereux.

Cornwallis township lies between Horton and Aylesford, along the
Minas Basin and Bay of Fundy. It was settled at the same time with
Horton by emigrants from Connecticut. This township is well watered
by several rivers, and the land throughout is of the very best quality,
every farm having a proportion of dike, meadow, and upland, whereby
the farmers are enabled to keep large stocks of cattle. There are nume-
rous and productive orchards; and this township, from its extraordinary
fertility, has been styled the garden of the province. There are in it
one episcopal, one presbyterian, one methodist, one independent, and
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three baptist chapels; also sixteen saw-mills, eleven grist-nii]]_s, one oat-
mil], and two carding, machines.,

Aylesford township lies between Cornwallis and Wilmot. in the
county of Annapolis. It was scttled by loyalists in 1784.. The soil and
productions are similar in all respects to those of Cornwallis.

Parrsborough township is situated on the eastern stde of Minas
basin, by which it is divided from thg rest of the county. The land is
much broken and lul]y, but in general' the soil is good and” fruitful, there
being a considerable quantity of interval. The village of Parrqborough
is on the shore, from whence packets sail to and from Windsor and
Horton, twicg a week.

The Minas basin is a large reservoir that reccives the waters of
nincteen rivers, some of very considerable magnitude, and communicates
with the Bay of Fundy by a strait between Partridge Island and Cape
Blomedon. The tides rise in this hasin higher thap dn any part of
America, and rushing in with extraordinary®velocity, from the Bay of
Fundy, deposit vast quantities of alluvialymatter on the shore, whereby
those tracts of rich dike and marsh land Have been formed, which render
the districts surrounding it the most productive, best settled, and populous
in Nova Scotia.

The population of this county was in 1817, 7,145 souls. The census
of 1827 gave the following results as to population and agricultural
produce.

S Live Stock. - Produce
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Horton Township 3,014| 629 . 4,121 5,650 2,79 {11,286 9,452 25,258 (148,386 | B,251
;Cornwnllm Ditto . | 4,404 261 5,316| 8,484 3,227 |13,100 (11,555 28,270 (281,727 (11,120
Agylesford Dicto . | 1,098| 164 1,192 2,017| 6291 3,429 1,642/ 4,691 | 20,625} 2,581
[Parrsborough Ditto | 1,692| 235| 1,951 | 2,423| 1,585 6,335 3,019| 7,018| 78,865 3,334
|
iTotal_Kingis county. {10,208 !1,789' 12,580 18,574 | 8,232 [34,150 125,608 165,137 538,903 '25,286
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COUNTY OF LUNENBURS,

The county of Lunenburg was laid out in 1754: if is bounded on
the north by King’s and Annapolis counties, on the east by Halifax, on
the west by Queen’s county, and on the south by the Atlantic ocean. It
contains three townships, Chester, Luncnburg, and New Dublin, and
returns two members to the provificial ..parliauu:nf.

The ﬁowﬂs}nip of Chester was laid out in 1760, and first settled by
emigrants from New England, to whom were subsequently added several
German families. The land is) in gencral, covered with gpruce and fir
timber, well wagered, and capable of cultivation. Indications of coal are
observed near Chester, and line, yellow ochre, and pipe clay, are found
in several places. 'The principal harbour is Mahone Bay, which is very
extensive, and affords secure anchorage inside its numerous islands, to
vessels of ‘the g'r:p.atest magnitude. Chester town is situated on the
north'side of the bay, about njnc miles from its mouth, upon a snug and
commodious harbour. It is a&'ery thriving town, and carries on a very
considerable lumber trade and fishery. There are seven saw-mills, two
grist-mills, and a fulling-mill, in this township, and an episcopal and
a baptist church.
~ Lunenburg township is, next to Halifax, the oldest formed by the
English in this province. It was scttled in 1753, by 400 families of
Uﬁtcl}. and Germans, who were brought out at the expense of the British
government, and who received very liberal encouragement and ‘assistance.
The settlement continued to prosper, more or less, and in 1791 the
population amounted to 3247 souls; since when it has increased both in
population and wealth. The harbour of Lunenburg is small but easy
of access, and is well sheltered by Cross Island ; vessels can lie alongside
the wharfs in fourteen feet water. The town of Lunenburg is con-
structed on a regular plan; it is the shire town, and contains about 250
dwelling-houses, stores, &c. Thére are a court-house and jail, and four
churches, Episcopalian, T.utheran, Calvinist, and Methodist. 'Ther_e is
an extensive trade carried on here with the West Indies, Newfound-
land and Quebec. Lﬁnenburg is one of the ﬂmirishing townships of
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the province, and although the land is nowhere'rich, yet jt§ tontiguity
to the Halifax marRet enables’ the settlers to raise and dispose of any
article ofsprodyce with advantage. This township returns one member
to the provincial parliament. '

New Dublin township is situate on the river and harbour of La Have.
It was originally granted to some New Englanders, who very sood
abandoned it, and ite was subsequently granted to German and other
settlers. The lands bordering-c.m the harbour and river La Have are
stony ard mountainous, ahmm(ing with timbg of la'rge growth and
value. The land to the westward, on Petit River and Palinerston Bay,
is of a*bettet quality. The river La Have takes its sowree far in the
interior, and falls into the harbour ef La Have. 'This harbour is very
spacious, fo;ming an inner and outer harbour. 'I'he outer harbour
affords good anchorage, and is formed and sheltered by several islands,
which are well calculated for drying fish. The i inner hﬁrhour is formed
by the river; it is capacious, and navigable for fifteen milds, THe ber
at the entrance has twelve feet at low waler ; inside there are soundings
from eight fathoms gradually to three. Considerable quantities of fish
arc taken here, and several vessels are annually loaded with lumber and
timber for GGreat Britain. There are on the La Have upwards of thirty
aw-mills, and on the west side of the river the remains of an ancient
French fort, built in 1632, are still to be seen.

The Statistics of the County, as taken in 1827, are shown by the following Table

) Live Stock. '?; Produce
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Chester Township . | 2,092 38| 1,645 2,412| 1,151 3,346} 558/ 6,061 56,800 | 1,746
Lunenburg ditto . | 5,038|105| 5,042 | 6,350 | 2,766 | 7,081 2,008 121,044 [193,028 | 6,249
New Dublir ditto . | 2,275 | 59| 2,201 | 2,376 | 1,414 3,040 84,335 | 9,682
Total Lunenburg county | 9,406 (902 [ 8,978 (11,298 | 5,381 13,467 3,117 35,146 354,163 10,677
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QUEEN’S COUNTY.

" This county is bounded on the north by Annapolis county, on the
;ast by Lunenburg, on the west by Shelburne county, and on the south
by the Atlantic ccean. It contains two townships, Liverpool and Guys-
' borough, and returns three members to the provincial House of Assembly,
viz. two for the county. and one for Lwerpool township. The interior
of this county is stony, and generally incapable of cultivation. - On the
sea board it is somewhat better; there are, however, several tracts' of
better soil, end several thriving settlements.

Liverpool is the shire town of the county. It is surrounded by
hills, well watered, and enjoys a pure air. It contains about 250 houses,
stores, &c.; a court-house, jail, and three churches, episcopalian, con-
gregational, and methodist ; a school-house and block-house. It is one of
the best byiit and most regular county towns in the province, and there
is a handsome drawbridge, 1100 feet in length, over the river Mersey.
The trade of the place is very flourishing, consisting of the lumber trade
and fishery, both Shore and Labrador, and carried on with Europe and the
‘West Indies. The harbour was called by the I'rench Rosignel. A light-
house stands on Officer’s Island, at the entrance of the harbour, and is
distinguished by revolving every two minutes. This harbour never
freezes ovér, and is accessible at all seasons; but there is a bar at the
entrance of the river, with only nine feet at ebb and fifteen feet at flood
tide, so that large vessels are sometimes obliged to anchor at Henry
Cove.

Port Medway is a very fine harbour, capacious, navigable, and safe ;
having from five to fourteen fathoms. The river Medway runs into it,
upon which is situated Mill village, containing several good houses, a
church, and school-house, and the land here is the best in the county
There is a considerable lumber trade and fishery also carried on here.
Port Mouton is situated to the westward of Liverpool. A settlement
was founded in 1783, called Guysborough, but subsequently in great
part abandoned: it has never flourished, and is now an inconsiderable
place. There are also small settlements at Port Jollie and Port Hibbert,



QUEEN’S AND ANNAPOLIS COUNTIES 35

both. of which are shoal harbours, yet both the fishery and lymber tfade

are carried 6n to some extent.
The population of the county was, in 1817, 3,008 souls. The census

of 1827 gave the following results as to population and agriculture.

. Live Stock. 'g Produce ‘
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Liverpool Townghip 4,342 oy 1,601 1,287 (1,54313,006| 644 |1,624 (27,430 [2.220
(:uys or 3\1}_.}1 dltw 505 4| 12| 412 272| 452 $18| 7,237| 338
Brookfield Settlement *
Caledonia ditto, 458 | 68 | 523 | 782 449 2,172 715(1,464| 9250 949
Harmony diltt.o
Total of the county . 4,225 1163 (2,436 12,737 12,264 (5,630 (1,359 13,276 53,917 3,567.

ANNAPOLIS CQUNTY.

Annapolis county is bounded on the north and west by the Bay of
Fundy, on the south by Shelburne, Queen’s, and Lunenburg counties,
and on the east by King's county. It contains six townships, Anna-
polis, Granville, Wilmot, Clements, Digby, and Clare; and it returns five
ntembers to the provincial parliament, viz. two for the county, and gne
for each of the townships of Annapolis, Granville, and Digby. The first
European settlements in Nova Scotia were established by the French in_
this county, who made some very extensive improvements. After the
expulsion of the Acadians, their lands became an’ object of attention to
the people of the British colonies, a considerable number of whom re--
moved thither in 1764, and obtained a grant of the township of Annapolis.
This township contains a considerable quantity of valuable dike land; and
the upland, though stony, is generally good. Annapolis is the county
town. It was founded by the French, who called it Port Royale, and
was the capital of the province while in their possession. It was also the
seat of the British government until 1750, when it was superseded as such
by Halifax. The town is built upon a peninsula, which prejecting into

F 2
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the river, forms two beautiful basins, one above and one below the town.
It has not much increased in size or population since the conquest of
the province, but it is still a respectable town. It contains a government
houge, a court house, an episcopalian and methodist church, an academy,
commodious barracks, and several handsome private buildings.‘ The
military works erected at various times for its defence are now in a state
10f decay. There arc several good voads leading tq all parts of the pro-
vinee; a stage coach runs through Granville, Wilmot, Aylesford, Corn-
wallis, Windsor, and Newport, to Hal‘ifax; and a steam packet plies
constantly to St. John’s, New Brunswick. The trade of this town is
comparatively insignificant to what it formerly was, businoss being re-
moved to other inore convenient and better circumstanced settlements.

Granville and Wilmot townships comprehend, for 46 miles, the
peninsula formed by the river Annapolis, running parallel to the Bay of
Fundy. They were granted in 1764 to several New England settlers
-who came here. The land is of a very superior quality, consisting of
dike, salt marle, interval, and lgpland. "The river Annapolis rises in the
King’s county, and, keeping its course parallel to the Bay of Fundy, runs
into and from the harbour of Annapolis, and is navigable up to Bridge-
town, in Granville district. This thriving village is situated just at the
head of the navigation of the river, and is the place of shipment for the
I;roduce of these districts. It contains an episcopalian, a methodist, and a
baptist church, some good dwelling-houses, and several stores and shops.
A smell peninsula, extending from Granville township into Annapolis
Bay, was the first piece of land cleared, by the ¥rench, for cultivation in
Nova Scotia. These townships are well cultivated and thickly settled,
and contain, besides those at Bridgetown, ten churches of various de-
nominations. The whole coast of these townships, on the Bay of Fundy,
affords no shelter for vessels; to remedy which, a pier has been erected
on the shore in Wilmot township, which answers the purpose of a port,
and enables the inhabitants to ship their lumber and other produce.  The
farms in these townships are in general well cultivated and productive;
most of them. have orchards; and the cider and cheese made here are
equal, if not.superior, to any in, the province.

Clemncnts township is situated between Annapolis and Digby town-
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ships. It was settled in 1784 by some disbanded Hessian and American
loyalists. The land, fhough hilly and irregular, is in. general of a-supe-
rior quality ; great quantities of fish, herrings, aluviers, and shad are
taken on the shore of the basin in weirs. Iron ore exists in this togn-
ship in’great abundance; and here, and at Moore River; the Annapolis
Iron Mining Company have crected their works, from which metal of
very superior quality has been produced.

The township of Digby extends from Clements townspip to the
river Sissiboo, and within its limits are !Jnng Island and Brian Island.
It was g.ranted to American loyarists in 1784. Tt contains a portion of
marsh gud ingerval land, and «the timber is very good. The town of
Digby is situate on the Basin of Annapolis. It contains about 200 houses,
a court-house, and spacious church. 'The air is salubrious, and the situa-
tion agreeable; and it is much frequented in the summer by company
from St. John’s, to which a steam-packet runs three timgs a week. The
inhabitants of this town and neighbourhood are largzely engaged in the
cod and mackerel fishery along the coast. JAbout three mile$ below the
town of Digby is the entrance from the Bay of Fundy to Annapolis
Basin, through a strait called Digby Gut. At this entrance is a ligit-
house, well situated for the navigation of the bay. There is a very pretty
little settlement at the mouth of the Sissiboo, called Weymouth ; the
situation is peculiarly pleasing, and three are a number of respectable
inhabitants, whose farms are in a good state of cultivation.

The township of Clare, including the settlement of New Edinhurgh,
lies between Digby and Yarmouth, in Shelburne county. 1t is almost
exclusively settled by Acadians, the descendants of those who wete ex-
pelled from this province in 1755, and allowed to Yeturn after the peace
of 1763 ; and here those people preserve their distinctive character and
customs more especially than any where else in Nova Scotia. This town-
sship is in a flourishing condition. Farming, lumber, and the fishery are
industriously and extensively carried on, There are several small vessels
owned by the inhabitants; they have erected between thirty and forty
saw-mills and several grist mills. The whole township forms one parish,
and contains tsvo Roman catholic chapels, one of which is a very spacious,
handsome place of worship,
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The three townships which compose the western district of this
county have not the same advantages of salt-marsh and intervals ‘which
the other districts possess : but the upland is in general good, the pasture
abyndant and sweet, the timber of the best quality, and the fishery most
valuable. Mulch of this tract of country remains as yet uncultivated,
but is not of a quality to invite strangers to settle in it, however advan-
tageous it may be for the increasipg resident population. )

The navigation of the Bay of Fundy has been represented as difficult
and dangerous 3 but the experience of _years has proved the reverse : for
in fact fewer vessels have been lost in if than in any other equal pcrtlon of
the seas of North America. The tide rises to a great height, sometimes
seventy feet, irr the bay, and it flows with great rapidity, running at the
entrance at the rate of about three miles an hour, and increasing as it ad-
vances to more than seven, and at length rushing with impetuosity into
the Minas Basiy «and Chignecto Bay. This rise and flow of the tide
considerably aids, tlie navigation both in and out of the bay. On the
Nova Scotla side there are fetv or no ports from Minas Basin to Anna-
polis; but from thence to the entrance, and round to the Atlantic, there
are several places affording anchorage and shelter.

The population of the county of Annapolis was, in the year 1817,
2817 souls. The census of 1827 gave the population, live stbck, and
agrizultural produce as follows.

» ] Live Stock. E Produce.
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Annapolis Township . | 2578 314| 2,713 8,315 1,201 | 4,758(1,225 | 65,415 | 7,270 | 5,182
Granville ditto . . | 2,526 264 2,780 | 8,767 1,194 | 4,200 (1,714 | 54,699 4,125 | 4,062
Wilmot ditto . | 2,204 328| 2,485| 4,173 11,327 5,190 11,780 | 40,816 | 5,455 | 4,524
Clements ditto . . | 1,611| 153 1,400( 2290 614 | 2,640| 467( 32,630 2,307 | 2,051
Digby ditto . . |'3,814] 216 2,709 5,606 (1,037 | 2,492| 195| 78,688 4,065 | 3,632
Clare ditto . . | 2,038| 76| 1,736| 2,802 1,314 | 2,885 29104,330| 3,097 | 2,090
Total Annapolis county |14,661 1,351 113,872 127,042 16,804 122,174 |5,410 {385,478 126,309 21,549
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COUNTY OF SHELBURNE.

This county is bounded on the north by Annapolis county, on the
east by Queen’s county, and on the south and west by the Atlantic
ocean. It contains four townships-—Shelburne, Barrington, Argyle, and
Yarmouth, and returns five members to the House of Assémbly, viz.
two for the county, and one each %or the townshipg of Shelburne, Barring-
ton, and Yarmouth.: The wholc of the interior of this county remains,
with few exdeptions, in a wilderness state, In some places it is well
wooded, and the soil of a good quality. The whole population is settled
on the sea coast, where the best land is found. | '

Shelburne township lies between Port Hibbert, on the boundary of
the Queen’s county, and the river Ctyde. It was, g.rﬂ;lted in 1764 to
Colonel M‘Nutt, a spirited adventurer from the north of Ireland, who,
with his associates, obtained a grant of ont million acres in the province,
to be sclected where he chose. He selected 100,000 in this township;
but having failed to fulfil the condition of the grant, it became forfeited.
It was subsequently settled by American loyalists, 500 families of whorne
arrived here in 1783, and the number was subsequently very much in-
creased. They erected the extensive town of Shelburne, on the harbour
of that name. This town arose with astonishing rapidity, and in the
course of a year its population was not less than 12,000. Its decline
was almost as rapid : owing to many and insurmountable combining cir-
cumstances, it began immediately to decay, and now is in a most deserted
and dilapidated state. The harbour of Shelburne is esteemed one of the
best in America; it is twelve miles in length, easy of access, and: perfectly
secure, affording anchorage for ships of the heaviest burthen. On M‘Nutt’s
Island, situate at the entrance of the harbour, stands a light-house, in lat.
48° 40 and longitude 65°8 west from Greenwich. The lantern is 125
feet above the sea, and has been lately filled with Argand lamps, which
may be seen at thirty miles distance. It is in every respect similar to
to the light-house at Halifax, with the exception of showing an inter-
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mediate light about half way from the lantern to the base. The river
Clydé rises ﬁpwards of forty miles in the interior,‘in an extensive chain
of lakes, and at its junction with the sea forms two harbours, called Cape
Negro Harbours. It is said to be one of the most beautiful rivers in
Nova Scotia. The lands surrounding the lakes and head of this river
-abound with valuable timber.

Barrington township lies betwéen Shelburne and Argyle, and includes
Cape Sable Island. Tt was granted in 1760 to 200 proprietors from New
England. It contains 100,000 acres, a great part of which is barren and
bog. The soil is rocky and stqbbom; but in several places, 'when well
tilled and manured, yields abufdant crops, particularly of grass. The
climate is much'milder than in the more eastern districts of Ehc province,
and fog prevails in June, July, and August. It was originally inhabited
by the Acadians. The principal occupation of the inhabitants is the
Shore and Labiador fishery, which yields large quantities of fish for
export to the West Indies. In front of this township is Sable Island.
Another island*forms Cape Sable, the most southern point of Nova Scotia.
Barrington Harbour is shoal, but safe and convenient for small vessels;
at the head of it is the inconsiderable village of Barrington. The inha-
bitants of the township are scattered along its coast, the better to take
advantage of the fishery.

Argyle township lies between Barrington and Yarmouth, and is
bouanded on the south and west by the sea. It includes all the islands
in froat of it, and contains about 120,000 acres. It contains some ex-
tensive marshes, which, although not so valuable as those on the Minas
Basin, afford several good situations for farming. The upland is ge-
nerally stony and productive, but requires good tillage ; the climate is
temperate, varying from zero to eighty; the mean about forty-eight.
Apples, plums, and cherries succeed well ; and pears, peaches, and melons
ripen. The production of potatoes and grass, rearing cattle, and making
cheese and butter, are more attended to than the culture of grain. At
the mouth of the Tusket river there are about 800 islands, called the
"Tuskets, many of which are well cultivated, and afford shelter and an-
chorage for small vessels. The river Tusket is navigable for boats thirty-



